
Sheboygan County  Posted 07/09/2021 10:10 AM 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

SHEBOYGAN COUNTY PLANNING, RESOURCES, 
AGRICULTURE AND EXTENSION COMMITTEE 

 
July 13, 2021  3:30 PM 

 
UW Extension Office 

UW Sheboygan Campus 
5 University Drive 
Sheboygan, WI 

Room 5024 

Remote Access: 
(312) 626-6799 
Meeting ID: 956 6404 0989 
Passcode: 856197 
https://zoom.us/j/95664040989?pwd=dGJrYlZ5Tmx2RVcvRDFsdU5Ld0lXZz09 

 
* AGENDA * 

Call Meeting to Order 
Certification of Compliance with Open Meeting Law 
Approval of Minutes 
 - PRAE Committee - Regular Meeting – June 8, 2021 
Correspondence 
 
Planning & Conservation 
 
 Consideration of 2021 Stewardship Applications 
 
Other Department Project and Program Management Updates 
Consideration and Approval of Attendance at Other Meetings/Functions   
Travel Report and Report of Meetings and Functions Attended  
Review and Approve Vouchers 
Adjournment 
Next scheduled meetings - July 27, 2021 at 3:30 PM (UW Extension Focus)  
   - August 10, 2021 at 3:30 PM (Planning & Conservation Focus)  
 
 
Prepared by:  Approved by: 
Karsen Gosh, Recording Secretary Keith Abler, Chairperson 
(920) 459-1370 (920) 207-9351 
 
 
NOTE:   The Committee welcomes all visitors to listen & observe, but only Committee members & those invited to 

speak will be permitted to do so, except for the Public Hearing portion of this meeting where any interested 
person can speak.  Person with disabilities needing assistance to attend or participate should contact the 
County Planning & Conservation Department at 920/459-1370 prior to the meeting so that accommodations 
may be arranged. 

 
NOTE: A majority of the members of the County Board of Supervisors or any of its committees may be present at 

this meeting to listen, observe and participate.  If a majority of any such body is present, their presence 
constitutes a “meeting” under the Open Meeting Law as interpreted in State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale 
Village Board, Wis. 2d 553 (1993), even though the visiting body will take no action at this meeting. 

https://zoom.us/j/95664040989?pwd=dGJrYlZ5Tmx2RVcvRDFsdU5Ld0lXZz09


SHEBOYGAN COUNTY PLANNING, RESOURCES,  
AGRICULTURE, & EXTENSION COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 

Sheboygan County UW-Extension Office 
5 University Drive 
Sheboygan, WI 

Room 5024 
and  

Via Zoom 
 

June 8, 2021   Called to Order: 3:33 PM       Adjourned: 4:11 PM 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Supervisor Keith Abler, Supervisor Rebecca Clarke, Supervisor 
Henry Nelson, Supervisor Mike Ogea, Supervisor Paul Gruber, and 
FSA Member Stan Lammers 

 
MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
 

OTHERS PRESENT: Aaron Brault, Karsen Gosh, Tyler Betry, Patrick Siwula, Dave 
Huenink 

 

Chairperson Abler called the meeting to order at 3:33 PM and verified that the meeting notice had 
been posted on June 4, 2021 at 10:45 AM and that the meeting was in compliance with the 
Wisconsin Open Meeting Law. 
 
Supervisor Nelson made a motion to approve the May 11, 2021 Planning, Resources, Agriculture 
and Extension Committee minutes. Supervisor Ogea seconded the motion.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Planning & Conservation – Patrick Siwula, Aquatic Invasive Species Coordinator for the Planning 
& Conservation Department, gave a brief presentation on controlling Purple Loosestrife using 
biocontrol methods. Mr. Siwula addressed questions from the Committee. 
 
Mr. Brault explained the amended Young Men’s Christian Academy’s (YMCA Camp Y-Koda) 
license agreement to the Committee. The agreement would allow the YMCA to utilize the new 
multi-purpose building at the Sheboygan Marsh for their Outdoor Environmental Education 
Program. This item was presented at the May 11, 2021 PRAE Committee Meeting but was tabled 
until a few minor modifications were made. Supervisor Ogea made a motion to approve the 
amended resolution. Supervisor Gruber seconded the motion and the motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Mr. Brault presented the Wood County Resolution and answered questions from the Committee. 
Supervisor Nelson made a motion to file the resolution. Mr. Lammers seconded the motion and 
the motion carried unanimously.  
 
Mr. Brault gave a brief departmental update on the State’s budget approval of the dam safety 
grant which would allot money for the replacement of the dam at the Sheboygan Marsh in 2023, 
the final approval of the Amsterdam Dunes Mitigation Bank, and an invasive species grant to 
manage wild chervil.  
 



Mr. Betry informed the Committee about the Between the Lakes Demo Farm field day event 
coming up on June 23, 2021. Mr. Lammers made a motion to approve mileage and per diem for 
Committee attendance to the Between the Lakes Demo Farm field day event coming up on June 
23, 2021. Supervisor Ogea seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously.  
 
Supervisor Nelson made a motion to approve the vouchers. Supervisor Clarke seconded the 
motion. The motion carried with Supervisor Ogea voting nay.  
 

Supervisor Ogea moved and Mr. Lammers seconded to adjourn.  Motion carried unanimously 
with adjournment at 4:11 PM. 
 

Next meeting (UW-Extension focus) is scheduled for Tuesday, June 22, 2021. Next meeting 
(Planning & Conservation and Register of Deeds focus) is scheduled for Tuesday, July 13, 2021. 
 
Prepared by:               Approved by: 
Karsen Gosh              Keith Abler, Chairperson 
Recording Secretary                         (920) 207-9351 
 



Sheboygan County 

Planning & Conservation Department 
Administration Building  508 New York Avenue  Sheboygan, WI  53081-4126 
P:  (920) 459-3060  P:  (920) 459-1370  F:  (920) 459-1371  
E:  plancon@sheboygancounty.com              Director 
                         Aaron C. Brault 

Memo 
TO:  Planning, Resources, Agriculture & Extension Committee Members 

FROM: Tyler Betry  

DATE:   July 13, 2021 

RE:     2021 Stewardship Staff Recommendation: City of Sheboygan & Restoration of Our Trees Sheboygan 
(ROOTS) – Replacing Ash Trees & Implementing BRAGS Project 

The City of Sheboygan, in conjunction with ROOTS, have submitted a project development application requesting 

$15,000 to assist in replacing diseased ash tress within the City due to Emerald Ash Borer (EAB) by establishing a 

Bare Root Accelerated Growth System (BRAGS).  

If awarded, funds from this grant will be utilized for replacing 100 EAB affected ash trees within 9 parks 

throughout the City of Sheboygan, and for components to create the BRAGS gravel bed.  BRAGS is a gravel bed 

system used to raise bareroot tree stock.  Bareroot stock can be purchased in spring for a lower cost compared to 

potted or burlapped trees.  The intent of the BRAGS project is to purchase bareroot stock in spring at lower cost, 

raise them in the gravel bed to improve the trees root systems, then plant these trees at a later date.  The trees 

are easier to transplant from the gravel bed to their future locations, and will have a healthy and extensive root 

system.  

Based on the application, which was scored 1st with an average staff score of 28/58, staff proposes that the PRAE 

Committee recommend funding in the full amount $15,000 contingent upon obtaining the required 50% or 

more match.  Listed below are the pros and cons of the project that staff developed.    

Pros  

• Strong local support 

• Great cost saving solution for future 

mitigation projects 

• Successful applicant from a prior year 

• Innovative project 

 

 

 

 

 

Cons 

• Little immediate recreation value 

 

 







1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



Sheboygan County 

Planning & Conservation Department 
Administration Building  508 New York Avenue  Sheboygan, WI  53081-4126 
P:  (920) 459-3060  P:  (920) 459-1370  F:  (920) 459-1371  
E:  plancon@sheboygancounty.com              Director 
                         Aaron C. Brault 

Memo 
TO:  Planning, Resources, Agriculture & Extension Committee Members 

FROM: Tyler Betry  

DATE:   July 13, 2021 

RE:     2021 Stewardship Staff Recommendation: Environmental Park Trust of Sheboygan County – Maywood 
Park Habitat Improvement Project 

The Environmental Park Trust of Sheboygan County has submitted a project development application requesting 

$13,860 to assist in improving certain elements of the 21-acre prairie within Maywood Park in the City of 

Sheboygan.  

If awarded the grant, the Environmental Park Trust would plan to use the funds to complete the following in their 

project area: Restore abandoned berms along the southern edge of the prairie and plant trees to replace Emerald 

Ash Borer infected ash trees while diversifying property buffers, burn and replant areas within the prairie to 

replace invasive species and build habitat brush piles with the non-reproductive parts of the invasive plants, 

develop a seasonal snowshoe trail, and finally, add several Aldo-Leopold-style benches and 20 new kestrel nest 

boxes within the restoration area.  

Based on the application, which was scored and tied for 2nd place with an average staff score of 27/58, staff 

proposes that the PRAE Committee recommend funding in the partial amount of $13,267 contingent upon 

obtaining the required 50% or more match.  Partial funding is recommended since the application guidelines 

dictate that employee labor should not be funded using grant dollars.  Listed below are the pros and cons of the 

project that staff developed.    

Pros  

• Habitat improvement is in line with 

Stewardship Program goals 

• Education elements  

• Large restoration project, not just 

invasive species treatment 

 

 

 

 

Cons 

• Prairie burn could fall into a type of 

maintenance activity 

 

 

 







































Sheboygan County 

Planning & Conservation Department 
Administration Building  508 New York Avenue  Sheboygan, WI  53081-4126 
P:  (920) 459-3060  P:  (920) 459-1370  F:  (920) 459-1371  
E:  plancon@sheboygancounty.com              Director 
                         Aaron C. Brault 

Memo 
TO:  Planning, Resources, Agriculture & Extension Committee Members 

FROM: Tyler Betry  

DATE:   July 13, 2021 

RE:     2021 Stewardship Staff Recommendation: Town of Mosel – Lake Michigan Access 

The Town of Mosel has submitted a project development application requesting $15,232 to assist in improving a 

little-known public access point to Lake Michigan.  The Town plans to make this access point even more 

accessible, aesthetically pleasing, safer, and more user friendly for the public.  

This little-known, unimproved, wedge of land at the end of Rowe Road was set aside through a conditional use 

permit with Kohler Co. in 1995.  Located adjacent to Whistling Straits and with an elevated, scenic view of the 

lake, the site has much untapped potential as an amenity for visitors. If awarded the grant, the Town plans to 

utilize the funds to offset the cost of creating a paved/graded path from the end of Rowe Rd to the top of the 

bluff.  They also intend to add enhancements to the site to draw in more visitors such as a bench, picnic table, 

signage, and lighting.  

Based on the application, which was scored and tied for 2nd place with an average staff score of 27/58, staff 

proposes that the PRAE Committee recommend funding in the amount $15,232 contingent upon obtaining the 

required 50% or more match, obtaining a shoreland zoning permit through our Department, and creating 

signage identifying the site for visitors on Lakeshore Road.  Listed below are the pros and cons of the project 

that staff developed.    

Pros  

• Inexpensive project 

• Lots of partner support / donated labor 

• Enhancing the Town’s only access to 

Lake Michigan 

 

 

 

 

 

Cons 

• Limited recreation value other than 

site seeing and access. 

 



9 

 

Qualifying Questions 
Proposals not qualifying in this section will not move forward in the grant selection process. 

Applicant: 

Municipality/organization: ______________________________________________________ 

 501(c)(3) non-profit organization  

 Town, Village, or City in Sheboygan County 

 Other governmental agency 

In what manner is this project consistent with the Sheboygan County 
Outdoor Recreation & Open Space Plan? 

 Project has been identified in the Plan and its boundaries are entirely within the Plan 

 Project has partially been identified and/or buffers a project identified in the Plan 

 Project fits the intent of one or more of the goals of the Plan 

 This project is not identified in the Plan, but is identified in the following local, state, or 

 federal plan: _____________________________________________________________ 

Project applies to which of the following categories: 

 Project development 

 Real estate acquisition 

 Discretionary (explain):______________________________________________________ 

Please complete this form and attach to the front of the 
application packet. 

To view the Sheboygan County Outdoor Recreation & Open Space Plan, visit 
sheboygancounty.com and navigate to the Planning & Conservation Department’s page. 

Town of Mosel



10 

Attachment A - Applicant and Project Information 

Applicant Information 

Municipality / organization  ___________________________________________________________  

Contact person / title  ________________________________________________________________  

Address  ___________________________________________________________________________  

City, state, zip code  _________________________________________________________________  

Phone number  _____________________________________________________________________  

Fax number  _______________________________________________________________________  

Email  _____________________________________________________________________________  

Organization website  ________________________________________________________________  

Project Information 

Project location: 

Project type: Project development Property acquisition (fee title) 

Property acquisition (easement) Discretionary 

Total project cost (if project development or discretionary): $ 

Total purchase price (if land acquisition): $ 

Total grant request (up to 50% of total project cost): $ 

Ultimate title or easement holder (if land acquisition): _________________________________________ 

Brief project description: ________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

I certify that the information in this application and its supporting materials are true and correct to the 
best of my knowledge.   

______________________________________________________  
Name / Title 

______________________________________________________    __________________ 
Signature         Date 

Township  Range 1/4     1/4 Section 

W982 County Road FF

Town of Mosel

Sheboygan, WI 53083

920

chair@moselwi.gov

moselwi.gov

920-627-3718

920-565-2677

T16N R23E SE SW 22

n/a

n/a

This project will improve a very rough and little known public 

access to Lake Michigan, making it far more accessible, aesthetically pleasing, safer,

and more user friendly.

Aaron Anger / Mosel Town Board Chairman

Aaron Anger / Mosel Town Board Chairman



12 

Attachment C – Budget Worksheet for Project Development Applications 

Make photocopies for additional pages if necessary. 

Development Project Items       
(list by individual item or break down by use areas) 

(include donated materials and/or time)

Indicate      
Contract (C),      

Force Account (F),  
or Donated (D)

Quantity and 
unit of 

measure 

Component 
Cost 

Estimated 
total item 

cost 

 Total: $

 Stewardship Fund Grant request amount (50% of total): $ 

D

Paved, graded path 
(475' from end of Rowe Rd to top of bluff)
Includes excavation, installation of gravel, 
compacting, fine grading, and paving

Lighting (solar)

Bench

Picnic table

Signage

Decorative plantings

F Lump sum $18,500

F 3 $7,200

D

D

5

1

1

$2,400

F $185 $925

$650 $650

$350 $350

Bike rack
("Wave" style with 3 loops for up to 
5 bikes) 

F 1 $300 $340

30,465

15,232

Lump sum $2,500



13 

Attachment D – Narrative Outline 

All Sheboygan County Stewardship Fund Grant proposals must include a stand-alone narrative that 
includes a summary describing how the proposal is consistent with the Sheboygan County Outdoor 
Recreation & Open Space Plan and other relevant plans.  Applicants can refer to the Rating & Ranking 
Guidelines and Forms, beginning on page 15, for guidance.  The form of the narrative can follow the 
factors as they are outlined in the Rating and Ranking Forms specifically (see below for guidance); the 
applicant is welcome to write independently and without the guidance of the Forms, although the 
narrative must be presented in a complete, structured format.   

The narrative should not exceed 5 pages.  

A clear, concise narrative will improve the applicant’s probability of being awarded a Stewardship Fund 
grant.  Proposals can also include additional documentation that supports and enhances the narrative.  

Form A (all project types) 
Introduction 

Natural resources: water 

Natural resources: land 

Community cooperation 

Density standards 

Form B (project development) Form C (land acquisition) 
Introduction Introduction 

Planning factors Project availability 

Recreation Economic factors 

Management factors Management factors 

Economic factors Planning factors 

Cooperative factors Natural resources factors 

Cooperative factors 

Recreation 

Sheboygan County Planning & Conservation Department staff is not responsible for 
researching various local, State, and/or Federal plans in which the project may be identified. 
It is the responsibility of the applicant to include this information in the proposal in order to 
receive points for those items.    

If you would like a copy of a past successful Stewardship Fund Grant application, please 
contact 920-459-3060 or tyler.betry@sheboygancounty.com.  



                                                                                                                                                     Rowe Road Public Lake Access 
 

1 
 

~ PROJECT NARRATIVE ~ 
 

Improvement of Rowe Road Public Access to Lake Michigan 
 
 
Introduction 
 

The Town of Mosel is blessed with over six miles of scenic Lake Michigan shoreline. Although 
other coastal communities in the County have attractive and accessible public access to the lake, 
the only access in Mosel is a little-known, unimproved, partly inaccessible wedge of land at the 
end of Rowe Road that was set aside through a conditional use permit with Kohler Co. in 1995. 

 
Located adjacent to Whistling Straits and 
with an elevated, scenic view of the lake, 
the site has much untapped potential as 
an amenity for residents and visitors 
alike.  
 
To help turn this potential into reality, 
this grant application is requesting funds 
to offset the cost of 1) constructing a safe 
and accessible path, and 2) installing 
enhancements such as a bench, picnic 
table, parking, signage, and lighting.  

 
 
Natural Resources – Water  
 

Lying within the Sevenmile and Silver Creek-Frontal Lake Michigan Watershed, the project site 
slopes toward Lake Michigan and includes about 300 feet of lake frontage.  
 
The entire site is within the Sheboygan County shoreland zoning jurisdiction and will be subject 
to the permit requirements of Chapter 72 Shoreland Ordinance.  
 
Lake Michigan has been identified as a 303(d) impaired waterbody in Sheboygan County. The 
lake is also discussed at length in the Sheboygan County Outdoor Recreation & Open Space Plan. 
 
Identified as “Parks and Recreation” on the Future Land Use Plan (Map 1) in the Town of Mosel 
Comprehensive Plan 2009 – 2029, the site and this proposal is consistent with the Plan and its 
subsequent addendum (10-year update). 
 
 
Natural Resources – Land  
 

According to the Soil Survey of Sheboygan County, Wisconsin, the strip of shoreline along the site 
consists of Ry–Rough broken land soils, which are typically found on lake banks, riverbanks, and 
escarpments. It is well drained, with slopes 20 to 45 percent. This land is mostly reddish brown 
silty clay loam or clay loam glacial till and “is best used as wildlife sanctuary.” 



                                                                                                                                                     Rowe Road Public Lake Access 
 

2 
 

 
Moving inland to the west and up the bluff, one encounters MsA, the aptly named Mosel loam, 0 
to 3 percent slopes, and described as “old glacial lake basins and on till plains.”  

 
The part of the site furthest west, 
where Rowe Road ends and 
signage, lighting, and minimal 
parking will be, is Wa–Wasepi sandy 
loam, 0 to 2 percent slopes. This 
nearly level soil is on old glacial lake 
plains and outwash plains. It is best 
suited for pasture and woodland. 
 
Currently, the site is mostly 
overgrown brush, grassy bluff, and 
a berm/strip of woodland between 

the site and the shooting range. A 10 - 15 foot wide mowed corridor serves as the path, with a 
barbwire-topped fence on the north side to separate the site from the golf course. The end of 
Rowe Road features a small cul-de-sac. There is currently no indication that the site is a public 
access site, and the entry to the path is obscured by thick brush. 
 
The bluff is about 50 feet tall, 
offering scenic views of the lake, 
and appears to be stabilized by 
vegetative cover on its slope, an 
underground drainage system, and 
riprap at the foot of the bluff. Per 
the Sheboygan County Outdoor 
Recreation & Open Space Plan, “this 
area is composed of cohesive glacial 
till, lacustrine clays, unconsolidated 
clays, silts, sands, and outwash 
deposits. The soils in this area tend 
to become easily saturated by high groundwater levels. This soil saturation is a major contributor 
to bluff erosion along the coast. Upon saturation, the soils become heavy, weakening the 
structure of the bluff. Coupled with the dynamic wave action of Lake Michigan at the base of the 
bluff area, erosion and slumping is an ongoing hazard that must be continually mitigated through 
shoreline regulation and erosion control projects.”  
 
  



                                                                                                                                                     Rowe Road Public Lake Access 
 

3 
 

The photos below were taken in April of 2021 and show recent efforts by Kohler Co. to stabilize 
and protect the shoreline along Whistling Straits and the Rowe Road public access.   
 

 
 
Community Cooperation  
 

The Town’s Future Land Use Plan map does not show any potential future land use changes in 
the neighborhood that would have an adverse impact on the site. 
 
As part of a 1995 conditional use permit, Kohler Co. agreed to provide public access to the beach 
at this site. Although limited, the access has been provided, and Kohler Co. is supportive of the 
efforts described in this proposal to enhance the access (see letter of support). 
 
A citizen opinion survey mailed to all Town of Mosel households in 2018 by UW-Extension 
Sheboygan County included a question about adding more recreational space in the Town. 41% 
of respondents indicated they would like to see improved Lake Michigan access on Rowe Road 
(or elsewhere). This was an increase of 8% since a similar question was posed on a 2004 survey. 
When asked in the 2018 survey what improvements they would like to see at the existing Rowe 
Road access, “improved pathway” and “picnic area” were the top two responses. This application 
seeks to address both of these desires. 
 
An on-site meeting was held on October 2, 2018 with representatives from the Town of Mosel,  
the Sheboygan County Transportation Department, the Sheboygan County Sheriff’s Department, 
The Christopher Farm and Gardens, and the neighboring Sheboygan Rifle and Pistol Club. All 
parties were supportive of the project.  
 
Following the meeting, the representative from the Rifle and Pistol Club gave a tour of the Club’s 
property and explained how the layout of the shooting ranges, fencing, and landscaping have 
allowed the Club’s activities to safely coexist with the public access site and will continue to do so 
if enhancements to the access are made. Fencing also separates Whistling Straits from the public 
access. 
 

Looking south Looking north 



                                                                                                                                                     Rowe Road Public Lake Access 
 

4 
 

Representatives from The Christopher Farm and Gardens offered ideas and their expertise with 
plantings, landscaping, design, and site planning. They have agreed to donate plantings and labor 
to help beautify the area around the proposed welcome sign at the end of Rowe Road (see 
Budget Worksheet and letter of support). 
 
The proposed project is referred to in the Mosel section of the Sheboygan County Outdoor 
Recreation and Open Space Plan (2021), and the project fulfills a number of objectives, including 
Objective 1.5: “Develop a park and recreation system that will provide sites with equal 
accessibility for all.” This project will improve accessibility by removing obstructing vegetation 
and upgrading part of the rough pathway currently on the site.  
 
 
Density Standards  
 

The Town of Mosel Zoning Ordinance allows for compact residential (single-family and multi-
family) and mixed-use development in its RH-1 Rural Hamlet District, with a lot size maximum of 
60,000 square feet.  
 
Instead of a Conservation Subdivision Ordinance, the Town’s Zoning Ordinance includes a 
Planned Residential Development option as a conditional use in its R-3 Multi-Family Residential 
District. A cluster residential development option is available in this district.  
 
The Town’s Zoning Ordinance also includes a transfer of development rights option called the 
Bonus Lot Preservation Plan. Its purpose is to provide an additional way to implement the 
farmland preservation objectives within the Town of Mosel Comprehensive Plan, as well as the 
objectives of the Sheboygan County Farmland Preservation Plan. This plan contains an overlay 
zone that allows the development of lands in specified districts at densities greater than 
otherwise allowed in order to generate funds from the sale of bonus lots to purchase 
development rights from willing landowners in the Town’s Priority Agricultural Preservation 
Zone, and to encourage a more economical use of land that is suited to residential development 
by permitting more intensive use of such lands without changing the overall rural character of 
the Town. 
 
 
Planning Factors  
 

The proposed park project is referred to directly in the Town of Mosel Comprehensive Plan 2009-
2029 on page 37, where “more/better parking accommodations, more visibility/signage, 
and more accessibility in general” were cited by residents when surveyed about the existing 
access on Rowe Road. This finding was confirmed by a 2018 citizen opinion survey. 
 
 
Recreation  
 

Passive recreational opportunities will include enjoying the view of Lake Michigan, bird and 
butterfly watching, and picnicking. 
 



                                                                                                                                                     Rowe Road Public Lake Access 
 

5 
 

The access site can become more of a “destination” for bicyclists using the paved shoulders on 
the County’s bicycle route along Lakeshore Road. This route passes within a half mile of the 
access site. This is one of the reasons a new bike rack is included as part of the project. 
 
 
Management Factors 
 

The Town of Mosel, with assistance from Kohler Co., has the ability to manage the project. Since 
the site is owned by the Kohler Co., they will continue to be responsible for its management and 
maintenance. This includes mowing, fence repair, shoreline stabilization, and other needs that 
may arise. The Town will continue to be responsible for the maintenance of Rowe Road, the new 
signage, new lighting, the picnic improvements, and the parking area. 
 
 
Economic Factors 
 

Matching funds and in-kind donations totaling $15,233 have been assembled by the Town for 
improving the public access site through this project. The Sheboygan County Transportation 
Department will be awarded the paving work if the project goes forward. It is certainly possible 
that some travelers using I-43 might plan a side trip that includes exiting at STH 42 and stopping 
at the Rowe Road public access for a view of the lake and a peek at Whistling Straits, and a visit 
to the Haven Bar & Grill or Whistling Straits Restaurant/Pub, before reentering the interstate at 
the interchange in Cleveland.  

 

Cooperative Factors 
 

The Town of Mosel is benefiting substantially from partnerships: 
 

• Sheboygan County Transportation Department – Cost estimates and construction work 
• Christopher Farm and Gardens – Donation and installation of decorative plantings 
• UW-Extension Sheboygan County – Grant writing and technical support 
• Kohler Co. – Providers of lake access via conditional use permit; ongoing maintenance 
• Sheboygan Rifle and Pistol Club – Steps taken to avoid potential conflicts with public 

access visitors 
 
 
There is no current development threat to the project site. 



 

 

Internal Communication: For internal & partner use only. 

                                                                                                                       

 

          April 16, 2021 

Dear Sheboygan County Stewardship Committee,  

  

Whistling Straits is excited to offer this letter of support on behalf of the town of Mosel.  Our strong 
relationship with the town has been in place for many years as we have several large land holdings and 
businesses within the town, including Whistling Straits with directly abuts the subject property. 

For nearly 25 years we have partnered with the town to create lake access for town residents on the 
property.  Our golf course maintenance team regularly maintains the landscape and makes repairs as 
needed to ensure a safe, accessible, and attractive access point for residents to enjoy.  As a company we 
fully support the town’s objectives of improving the quality of lake access for residents, as it is in direct 
alignment with our company’s objectives of creating a gracious and attractive lakefront.  We would 
continue to offer our ongoing landscape and maintenance support to any improvements that the town 
would make to the area. 

 If you have any questions related to this letter or our ongoing support of the town’s objectives related 
to this project, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

Dirk Michael Willis 
VP – Global Golf, Retail & Landscape  
KOHLER Company  
  

 



	

CHRISTOPHER FARM & GARDENS 
W580 Garton Road 

Sheboygan, Wisconsin 
www.christopherfarmandgardens.org 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
April	15,	2021	
	
Mr.	Aaron	Anger	
Mosel	Township	Chairman	
W982	County	Road	FF	
Sheboygan,	Wisconsin	53083	
	
I	am	writing	in	support	of	the	proposed	public	access	to	the	Lake	
Michigan	beach	area	at	the	eastern	end	of	Rowe	Road	located	between	
the	Sheboygan	Gun	Club	property	to	the	south	and	the	Kohler	Whistling	
Straights	Golf	Course	to	the	north.		
	
Because	of	private	ownership	of	most	of	the	land	along	the	Lake	there	is	
no	public	access	to	the	Lake	or	beach	area	in	the	Township.	No	place	to	
launch	a	kayak	or	canoe	or	have	a	picnic	in	a	quiet,	private	setting.		
	
The	narrow	strip	of	property	at	the	eastern	end	of	Rowe	Road	provides	
easy	access	to	the	Lake	and	with	some	improvements	a	place	for	visitors	
to	park.		
	
I	look	forward	to	moving	forward	on	this	important	public	project.		
	
J.	W.	Christopher	
Owner,	Christopher	Farm	&	Gardens	
920-565-2105	
	
	





1 
 

~ PROPERTY INFORMATION ~ 
 

Improvement of Rowe Road Public Access to Lake Michigan 
 
 
The site is located on the far south end of parcel #59014-184170, owned by Kohler Co., with a 
legal description as follows: 
 

PRT GOVT LOT 4, BEING SE SW & PRT OF SW SE, SEC 22, COM AT INTER OF S LN SEC 22 
WITH HWM OF LAKE MICH, TH S88 DEG 47'23"W 1046.82'M/L, N0 DEG 10'34"W TO N LN 
GOVT LOT 4, ELY TO HWM LAKE MICH, TH SLY TO BEG. 

 
The parcel is zoned “A-2 General Agricultural District.” The lake public access/park is an allowable 
use in the A-2 district. There are no known encumbrances that would prohibit or restrict the 
improvement of the site as proposed.  
 
A conditional use permit issued by the Town of Mosel to the owner of the parcel includes the 
following as one of the conditions of the permit: 
 

“Kohler Company shall provide public access to the beach at the end of Rowe Road, 
including safe access to the lower beach area.” 

 
 (A copy of the CUP is included with this application.) 
 
Please see the Natural Resources – Land section of the Project Narrative for information about 
property characteristics. 
 
 



��
��
����
���
��
	�

�
�

������

�����	
��

�����	
��

�����

�������


����

�������

����


���������

��	�����

�������
�����

�����

������







����

�����


����

�������


�������

�������

��
��

��	

��
��

�
�
��

��
�
�

��
��
���

��

�

��

�

�������

���
���	

�������

�����	��


��
�
���

���



�
��� ������ �����

�
�	�����
�
�	������������

������



����

������

������

�
����� �������

���������				��
�����
�			��


�����

				��
����������				��


��
��

	�
�	
��

�	
			�

�


�� ����������	



�

��

��
������	�������������
���������������	����������������	





640

630

680

680

630

630

630

640

630

640

640

640

630

640

630

670

630

630

660

58
059
0

60
0

610

620

650

630

640

630

This map is intended for advisory purposes only. This information has been obtained from sources believed to
be reliable based on plats, surveys, and deeds. In areas where discrepancies occur between equivalent legal
records, the discrepancy is allowed to remain until such time as it is addressed. Sheboygan County distributes
this data on an 'as is' basis; no warranties are implied.

12/11/2018
Sources: Sheboygan County & City of Sheboygan I0 11055 '

ROWE ROAD PUBLIC ACCESS
Boundary and Topography

Sheboygan
County,
Wisconsin

Whistling  Straits

Rowe  Rd

Sheboygan Rifle & Pistol Club

PUBLIC
ACCESS

La
ke

    
 M

ich
iga

n



Paved  Path

#*

Whistling Straits

Rifle & Pistol Club

Rowe           Rd

Existing Fence

Existing Fence Existing  Berm La
ke

    
    

Mi
ch

iga
n

#*

#*

#*

;Parking

Picnic Area
(table & bench)4

4

4

Ro
ug

h  
Pa

th
To

p o
f B

luf
f

I0 9045 '
Rowe Road Public Lake Access

SITE PLAN?
;Le

ge
nd Light

Sign
Sign & Decorative Plantings
Property Boundary (Proposed Improvements in Yellow)



!R !R

!R

!R

!R

!R

!R

!R

!R

!R

!R

!R

!R

!R

!R

!B!B

!B

!B

3 ft Paved Shoulders

4 ft Paved Shoulders

3 ft Paved Shoulders 8 ft Paved Shoulders

3 ft Paved Shoulders

5 ft Paved Shoulders

5 ft Paved Shoulders

Howards Grove
Elkhart Lake

Glenbeulah

Plymouth Sheboygan
Falls

Kohler
Sheboygan

Oostburg

WaldoCascade

Adell

Random
Lake

Cedar
Grove

£¤23

£¤23

£¤23

5 ft Paved Shoulders

Ada

Haven

Dacada

Parnell

Edwards

Hingham

Batavia

St. Anna

Franklin

Beechwood

Gibbsville

Rhine Center

Johnsonville

Silver Creek

Sheboygan County
Pedestrian/Bicycle

Plan
Map

6

0 31.5
Miles

Existing Bicycle Facilities
and NOMO - funded 

Bicycle Facilities

Sheboygan

Kohler

Sheboygan
Falls

RA
NG

ELI
NE

 RD

N 8
TH

 ST

S B
US

INE
SS 

DR

GEELE AVE

LOWER RD

PLAYBIRD RD

UNION AVE

MONROE ST

PIGEON LN

PIONEER RD

t

Pre-NOMO Existing Facilities
NOMO-funded Facilities

!R Hamlets
!B Trailheads

Parks / Open Space Areas
Municipal Boundary

Metro Area Lake
Michigan

KII

I

£¤57

N

A

£¤67U

U

T

Z

P

MM

J

£¤67

C

MM

£¤57

£¤32 £¤42

EH

A

§̈¦43

Y

£¤32

O

PP

§̈¦43I

£¤28

§̈¦43

V

I

W

A

GW

KK

RR

Lake 
Michigan

Broughton Sheboygan Marsh Park
and Wildlife Area

Kiel Marsh
Wildlife Area

Rhine Center Bog Natural Area

La Budde Creek State 
Wildlife Area

Memorial Park

Community Park

Whistling Straits
Golf Course

Sheboygan County Airport

Camp Anokijig

Kettle Moraine
State Forest

Silver Spring/Mill Creek
Wildlife Area

River
Park River Wildlife

Taylor
Park

Wilderness Park

Kohler Andrae
State Park

Veterans 
Memorial Park

Nichols Creek
Wildlife Area

Village
Park

Amsterdam
Park

Lakeview
Park

Jaycee Quarry
Park

Field of 
Dreams Vollrath Park

Lakeview Park

City
Park

Greenbush

Existing facilities can include, but are not limited to, 
multi-use pathways, paved shoulders, on-street bike 
lanes, and marked routes.

struckms
Typewritten Text
Rowe Road
Public Access

struckms
Oval





struckms
Polygon





Sheboygan County 

Planning & Conservation Department 
Administration Building  508 New York Avenue  Sheboygan, WI  53081-4126 
P:  (920) 459-3060  P:  (920) 459-1370  F:  (920) 459-1371  
E:  plancon@sheboygancounty.com              Director 
                         Aaron C. Brault 

Memo 
TO:  Sheboygan County Recreational Facilities Management Advisory Committee Members 

FROM: Tyler Betry  

DATE:   June 7, 2021 

RE:     2021 Stewardship Staff Recommendation: Elkhart Lake Improvement Association (ELIA) – Elkhart Lake 
Basin Watershed Management Plan 

The Elkhart Lake Improvement Association (ELIA) has submitted a project development application requesting 

$10,000 to assist in creating a watershed management plan (Plan) for the Elkhart Lake basin that provides a 

framework for management actions that will help improve and maintain water quality in Elkhart Lake. 

The purpose of the Plan is to address specific watershed needs and to build a database of existing resources that 

will be used to guide implementation and management actions throughout the entire watershed.  Development 

of this Plan will provide the framework to improve water quality, public health, and wildlife values.  The Plan will 

also provide expanded recreational opportunities across the Basin and will allow stakeholders the opportunity to 

secure funds for implementation.   

Based on the application, which was scored 3rd with an average staff score of 23/58, staff proposes that the 

Recreational Facilities Management Advisory Committee recommend funding in the full amount $10,000 

contingent upon obtaining the required 50% or more match.  Listed below are the pros and cons of the project 

that staff developed.    

Pros  

• Strong local support 

• Ask is less than 50% of the total projects 

cost 

• Private donor funds are being utilized 

for this project 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cons 

• Low scoring  

• Implementation of plan not 

outlined or detailed 

 

 



9 

 

Qualifying Questions 
Proposals not qualifying in this section will not move forward in the grant selection process. 

Applicant: 

Municipality/organization: ______________________________________________________ 

 501(c)(3) non-profit organization  

 Town, Village, or City in Sheboygan County 

 Other governmental agency 

In what manner is this project consistent with the Sheboygan County 
Outdoor Recreation & Open Space Plan? 

 Project has been identified in the Plan and its boundaries are entirely within the Plan 

 Project has partially been identified and/or buffers a project identified in the Plan 

 Project fits the intent of one or more of the goals of the Plan 

 This project is not identified in the Plan, but is identified in the following local, state, or 

 federal plan: _____________________________________________________________ 

Project applies to which of the following categories: 

 Project development 

 Real estate acquisition 

 Discretionary (explain):______________________________________________________ 

Please complete this form and attach to the front of the 
application packet. 

To view the Sheboygan County Outdoor Recreation & Open Space Plan, visit 
sheboygancounty.com and navigate to the Planning & Conservation Department’s page. 



Attachment A - Applicant and Project Information 

Applicant Information 

Municipality/ organization Elkhart Lake Improvement Association (ELIA) 

Contact person/ title John Schott 
---------------------------

Address P.O. Box 725 

City, state, zip code Elkhart Lake, WI 53020 

Phone number 920-698-2480

Fax number NA 
------------------------------

Em a i I johnschott@icloud.com 

Organization website keepelkhartblue.org 

Proiect Information 

Project location: Township Range 

16N 21E 

Project type: 

1/4 

� 
Project development 

Property acquisition (easement) 

1/4 Section 

29&30 

B
Property acquisition (fee title) 

Discretionary 

Total project cost (if project development or discretionary): $36,000 

Total purchase price (if land acquisition): $0 

Total grant request (up to 50% of total project cost): $10,000 
.. 

Ultimate title or easement holder (if land acquisition): 

Brief project description: ELIA proposed to create a watershed management plan for the Elkhart Lake

basin that provides a framework for management actions that will help improve and maintain water 
-

quality in Elkhart Lake. 

10 

I certify that the information in this application and its supporting materials are true and correct to the
best of my knowledge. 

Nam 



12 

Attachment C – Budget Worksheet for Project Development Applications 

Make photocopies for additional pages if necessary. 

Development Project Items 
(list by individual item or break down by use areas) 

(include donated materials and/or time)

Indicate 
Contract (C),      

Force Account (F),  
or Donated (D)

Quantity and 
unit of 

measure 

Component 
Cost 

Estimated 
total item 

cost 

 Total: $

 Stewardship Fund Grant request amount (50% of total): $ 



ATTACHMENT D – NARRATIVE OUTLINE 
ELKHART LAKE IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION (ELIA)  
WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLANNING 
  

Page 1 
 

FORM A  

Introduction: The Elkhart Lake Improvement Association (ELIA) proposes to improve the 
ecological condition of Elkhart Lake and the surrounding watershed through development of an 
Elkhart Lake Watershed Management Plan (“Plan”) that addresses specific watershed needs 
and is consistent with a larger County-wide effort to build a database of existing resources that 
will be used to guide implementation and management actions throughout the entire Sheboygan 
River watershed. The overall goal of this project is to compile the necessary resources, engage 
stakeholders and create a watershed-scale plan for the Elkhart Lake watershed that provides a 
framework for management actions within the Elkhart Lake basin that will help improve and 
maintain water quality in the Elkhart Lake watershed (Figure 1, the “Basin”).  
 
The Plan will expand on existing Aquatic Invasive Species (AIS) management planning, funded 
by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) Surface Water Grants program, by 
evaluating inputs from surface water runoff within the watershed and their effects on lake water 
quality.  The major components of this project will include data gathering of existing reports, 
assessments and plans; evaluation of the Village of Elkhart Lake stormwater system; watershed 
modelling; GIS web mapping; and development of a Plan.  Development of this Plan will provide 
the framework to improve water quality for public health and wildlife values, provide expanded 
recreational opportunities to local citizens and visitors, and identify and prioritize water quality 
improvement projects across the Basin and will allow stakeholders the opportunity to secure 
funds for implementation.  

Natural Resources (water): Elkhart Lake is an approximately 292-acre kettle lake that supports 
passive recreation and a strong fishery.  Water quality sampling results from the Citizen Lake 
Monitoring Network (CLMN) classify Elkhart Lake as mesotrophic, which is defined as 
containing moderate amounts of nutrients and healthy, diverse populations of aquatic plants, 
algae, and fish. However, despite good water quality, Elkhart Lake is designated an impaired 
303d water by the WDNR for mercury contamination from atmospheric deposition, and lake 
users are increasingly concerned with maintaining or improving water quality along with 
continued control of problematic aquatic invasive plant species, which is necessary to maintain 
public use and property values. ELIA has been active in establishing an AIS control program, 
which includes a combination of Clean Boat/Clean Water (CBCW) programming and invasive 
plant removal or control by diver assisted suction harvesting, chemical control and/or hand 
pulling; however, nutrient inputs that contribute to increased AIS populations have not been 
addressed. 
 
Commercial and residential development, agricultural land use, and alterations to drainage 
within the Basin have resulted in increased flood potential and high discharge into Elkhart Lake 
during storm events.  Research and planning will be a collaborative effort between ELIA, the 
Village of Elkhart Lake, and local landowners to ensure comprehensive data collection and a 
cooperative community approach toward water quality management. The final Plan will 
incorporate recommendations for best management practices (BMPs) and project 
implementation within the Basin that reduce sediment and nutrient loadings from existing land 
use to improve water quality and protect aquatic habitats that support wildlife and recreational 
opportunities alike.  The resulting erosion control practices, stormwater management 
improvements, and ecological restoration will help meet Sheboygan County’s objective to 



ATTACHMENT D – NARRATIVE OUTLINE 
ELKHART LAKE IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION (ELIA)  
WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLANNING 
  

Page 2 
 

“reduce sediment and phosphorus loading from existing urban and developing areas into 
waterways” (Sheboygan County Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation and Open Space Plan, 
2015).  Additionally, the Sheboygan River Watershed is located entirely within the Northeast 
Lakeshore Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) study area. Development of this TMDL is already 
underway, and local watershed plans will soon be necessary to further refine management 
objectives and meet TMDL loading requirements.  
 
Natural Resources (land): The Basin encompasses approximately 2.7 square miles within 
Sheboygan County. Agriculture is the predominant land use while woodlands, wetlands, 
undisturbed non-agricultural uplands, and urban/residential development are also abundant. 
The northern portion of the watershed is urbanized and incorporated as the Village of Elkhart 
Lake. 
 
The Basin is located within the Southeast Glacial Plains Ecological Landscape, which consists 
of glacial till plains and moraines.  Historic vegetative cover included a mix of prairie, oak forests 
and savannas, and maple-basswood forests in additional to several wetland habitats.  Current 
land cover is predominantly agricultural, however small inclusions of remnant native habitat 
exist within the Basin and provide unique habitat for rare species. 
   
Development of this Plan will help identify stressors from existing land use as well as define 
opportunities to protect and restore natural areas and the species that depend on them.  
Additionally, the Plan would focus on management practices that would benefit water quality 
and offer public access and education.  

Community Cooperation: ELIA works to preserve, protect, and enhance the general welfare of 
Elkhart Lake and the safety of those who use it.  They are actively involved in the local 
community and are committed to building connections throughout the Basin and within the 
greater Sheboygan River watershed.  Throughout the timeline of the project, ELIA will 
collaborate with a diverse group of stakeholders including, but not limited to the Village of 
Elkhart Lake, Town of Rhine, Lakeshore Natural Resources Partnership (LNRP), Sheboygan 
County Planning and Conservation Department, Natural Resources Conservation Service 
(NRCS), WDNR, landowners, and private consulting firms. ELIA will participate in education and 
outreach, raising awareness of the importance of the planning process, and implementing water 
quality improvement projects. This project will leverage financial and technical support from 
professional organizations, non-profits, and state and federal agencies, which demonstrates this 
projects importance to the local and regional community.  
 
Density Standards: The Basin spans public and private property across the Village of Elkhart 
Lake and the Town of Rhine within Sheboygan County.  Based on 2018-2019 estimates from 
the US Census Bureau, the Village population was 1,116 and the Town population was 2,161. 
Elkhart Lake and natural areas within the Basin are widely used by residents for recreational 
activities such as non-motorized water sports, boating, swimming, fishing, birding, hiking, and 
biking. The proposed planning effort will enhance the quality of recreational opportunities within 
Elkhart lake and across the adjacent public parks and preserves, while enhancing wildlife 
habitat for the benefits of migrating birds and pollinators and improving water quality 
downstream.  



ATTACHMENT D – NARRATIVE OUTLINE 
ELKHART LAKE IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION (ELIA)  
WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLANNING 
  

Page 3 
 

 

FORM B 

Introduction: The Plan will be a collaborative effort between multiple partners and funding 
sources. ELIA seeks financial support from Sheboygan County to support baseline data 
collection and mapping of existing stormwater infrastructure within the Village of Elkhart Lake. 
Match sources will support watershed modelling and management planning efforts.  The final 
product will be the Plan for the Basin, which will clearly define water quality improvement 
strategies and identify opportunities for project implementation. Project tasks will include:  

 Historical Data Collection: ELIA will develop a detailed historical account of water quality 
and document watershed (inflow/outflow) characteristics, wildlife habitat, shoreline 
habitat, land use, rare species and environmental sensitive areas, as well as watershed 
use and actions taken within the watershed to improve water quality. Site surveys will 
be performed as needed to assess watershed patterns, wildlife/habitat, shoreline 
conditions, land use, rare species habitat, and environmentally sensitive areas not 
addressed in previous reports or available via desktop resources.   

 Village of Elkhart Lake Storm Sewer Mapping:  ELIA will coordinate with the Village of 
Elkhart Lake to perform storm sewer mapping within the Village and determine where 
outfalls exist.  A survey map will be produced and kept on record to aid in future 
infrastructure improvements and Basin planning efforts. 

 Modeling: Under separate funding, ELIA will secure all available water quality 
monitoring data completed within the watershed to create a baseline from which to 
compare over time. Water quality data will be used as a planning tool for establishing 
water quality parameters for improvement within the watershed. This data will also be 
used to calibrate water quality models. ELIA will work with stakeholders to select a 
water quality model suitable for the goals and objectives of this project. Given the 
watershed size, available data, and available management measures, suitable models 
may include the STEP-L model, possibly in combination with a GIS-based Unit Area 
Loading analysis. The modeling approach will utilize existing and project-specific spatial 
and hydrologic data to develop a Geographic Information System (GIS) database. Unit 
Area Load rates for modeled pollutants will be determined from literature review and 
research, including past regional and state studies, and will be combined with the 
project GIS to estimate average annual nonpoint pollutant loadings to waterbodies, for 
common pollutants such as sediment, phosphorus, and heavy metals such as mercury, 
copper, and zinc.   

 Plan Development: Under separate funding, ELIA will work with contracted staff to 
develop a draft and final version of the Plan addressing the following sections: 
Introduction; Watershed Overview; Modelling Results; Summary of Threats and 
Stressors, Goals and Management Objectives, and Management Recommendations 
and Implementation.  

 Stakeholder Engagement: ELIA will organize one stakeholder meeting to discuss the 
planning approach and management recommendations.  

Planning Factors: This project will contribute to and benefit from on-going planning initiatives 
such as the Sheboygan River Priority Watershed Project and the WDNR Northeast Lakeshore 
TMDL. Watershed planning is needed to provide a framework for continued management and 



ATTACHMENT D – NARRATIVE OUTLINE 
ELKHART LAKE IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION (ELIA)  
WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLANNING 
  

Page 4 
 

implementation of corrective actions to improve water quality and secure other grant-funded 
opportunities.  Additionally, this project aligns with goals and objectives of project plans 
previously implemented in Elkhart Lake and the greater Sheboygan River watershed. Projects 
and plans include:  

 WDNR Lake Planning Grant 2020 (https://keepelkhartblue.org/wp-
content/uploads/2020/05/WDNR-ELIA-Lk-Planning-Grant-Award_5-1-2020.pdf), which 
expanded water quality sampling in the lake and will result in an updated AIS 
management plant; 

 Elkhart Lake Groundwater Mapping and Monitoring Investigation 2006 
(https://keepelkhartblue.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/10/Report-Elkhart-Lake-
Groundwater-Monitoring-2006.pdf), which recommends various action items and 
investigation to evaluate nutrient inputs within the Elkhart Lake watershed; 

 Sheboygan County Land and Water Resource Management Plan 2016-2025 
(https://www.sheboygancounty.com/home/showdocument?id=5640), which identifies 
conservation priorities to improve water quality within Sheboygan County;  

 Sheboygan County Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation and Open Space Plan 2015 
(https://www.sheboygancounty.com/home/showpublisheddocument?id=9188), which 
identifies existing recreational opportunities in Elkhart Lake and provides 
recommendations for additional resources;  

 Sheboygan County Comprehensive Land Use Plan 2010-2030 
(https://www.sheboygancounty.com/departments/departments-f-q/planning-and-
conservation/comprehensive-plans/sheboygan-county-comprehensive-plan), which 
recommends: 1) ongoing support and development of programs that address agricultural 
runoff, farming practice, and shoreline development; 2) preservation of environmental 
corridors; 3) and enhancing opportunities for low-impact active outdoor recreation 
including wildlife viewing, walking, and fishing; 

 Northeast Lakeshore TMDL (https://dnr.wi.gov/topic/TMDLs/NELakeshore.html), which 
aims to improve surface water quality of tributaries, streams, rivers, and lakes; 

 WI Wildlife Action Plan (http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/wildlifehabitat/actionplan.html ), which 
calls for the protection and conservation of 108 natural community types across the 
state, including those located within the Elkhart Lake watershed; and 

 The Great Lakes Water Quality Agreement (https://www.epa.gov/glwqa), which 
addresses new provisions for aquatic invasive species and habitat degradation, 
preventing environmental threats, updating phosphorus targets, and developing water 
quality and ecosystem health objectives. 

Recreation: Outdoor recreation has increasingly become a signature of local communities in 
Sheboygan County, directing everything from how leisure time is spent to how valuable homes 
are. The Sheboygan County Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation and Open Space Plan 
addresses the importance of public, outdoor recreation, and preservation projects to the 
community and lists goals to ensure these areas are protected and available for the public to 
enjoy. The Elkhart Lake watershed offers a variety of recreational activities including wildlife 
watching, hiking, fishing, birding, bicycling, golf, horseback riding, snowmobiling, skiing, 
camping, picnicking, and water sports. 
 



ATTACHMENT D – NARRATIVE OUTLINE 
ELKHART LAKE IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION (ELIA)  
WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLANNING 
  

Page 5 
 

There is increased demand for outdoor recreation facilities and preservation of open space in 
this watershed, therefore it is crucial that future planning efforts balance recreation, 
preservation, and conservation of the area’s natural resources that are critical for future 
generations. The proposed planning initiative is a critical step towards ensuring these areas are 
prioritized and actions are implemented in the watershed to preserve and protect outdoor 
recreational opportunities. 
 
Management Factors: ELIA a volunteer-run, member-based non-profit organization and serves 
as the leading environmental advocate for the Elkhart Lake watershed.  They work diligently 
with community members, local government, and stakeholders within Sheboygan County to 
initiate water quality projects, community outreach, and boating safety in Elkhart lake.  For this 
project, ELIA will work closely with the Village of Elkhart Lake to map the storm sewer system 
and gain input on future management activities that may benefit water quality in Elkhart Lake.  
ELIA will also rely on qualified contractors to collect data, contribute technical information, and 
draft the Plan.   
 
Economic Factors: The overarching goal of this project is to restore and protect the watershed 
and sustain healthy fisheries and swimmable waters. The proposed Plan will provide the 
necessary framework with which to accomplish these goals and will provide the mechanism to 
secure funds for implementing water quality improvement projects. To provide the necessary 
financial support for this planning project, ELIA has secured matching funds and will seek 
additional matching funds from a variety of federal and state agencies, and foundations, 
including the WDNR. On behalf of ELIA, LNRP secured a WDNR Lake Planning grant which is 
supporting expanded water quality management and an updated AIS survey and management 
plan. This additional funding source is detailed as match in the budget form (Attachment C). 
ELIA will also work closely with Sheboygan County to integrate staff resources where 
appropriate.  
 
Cooperative Factors: ELIA aims to encourage local stewardship within the Basin through both 
member support and their cooperative partnerships with local municipal and non-profit 
organizations to further its mission.  Key partners include the Village of Elkhart Lake, Town of 
Rhine, Elkhart Lake Tourism, Elkhart Lake Chamber of Commerce, Glacial Lakes Conservancy, 
Wisconsin Lakes Association, LNRP, and Sheboygan County Planning and Conservation.  We 
understand that Sheboygan County recently completed an EVAAL study to identify areas with 
high erosion potential throughout the County.  ELIA intends to coordinate with Sheboygan 
County to incorporate recommendations from this study into the Plan for Elkhart Lake.  
Ultimately, the project will be a collaborative effort between the Village of Elkhart Lake and 
ELIA, with support from consultant partners and Sheboygan County.   











 

 C u l t i v a t i n g  C o m m u n i t y  a n d  S t e w a r d s h i p  f r o m  t h e  L e d g e  t o  t h e  L a k e s h o r e  
I N F O @ L N R P . O R G    |    P O S T  O F F I C E  B O X  3 5 8 ,  C L E V E L A N D ,  W I S C O N S I N  5 3 0 1 5    |    W W W . L N R P . O R G  

 

Dear Mr. Schott, 

We understand that the Elkhart Lake Improvement Association (ELIA) intends 
to apply for a Sheboygan County Stewardship Grant to expand their lake 
planning efforts within the Elkhart Lake basin. The Lakeshore Natural 
Resource Partnership (LNRP) strongly supports this grant application, which 
proposes data collection efforts that include stormwater mapping - in 
partnership with the Village of Elkhart Lake – and modelling, that will 
contribute to a watershed management plan and help define best 
management practices and opportunities for water quality improvement 
projects within the Elkhart Lake watershed.  

LNRP is actively involved in several watershed planning and water quality 
improvement initiatives throughout the Sheboygan River watershed, in 
Sheboygan County. In 2020, LNRP secured a Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources (WDNR) Surface Water Grant to expand surface water sampling in 
Elkhart Lake. This effort is ongoing and will help identify potential surface 
water inputs and their relationship to water quality and aquatic invasive 
species (AIS) in the lake. This data will help support the watershed planning 
effort proposed under this grant application.  

LNRP strongly supports ELIA’s efforts to improve the ecological health of 
Elkhart Lake.  

Sincerely,  

 

 

James Kettler, Director of Projects 

April 26th, 2021 
 
Elkhart Lake Improvement 
Association 
 
ATTN: John Schott, 
President 
 
RE: Sheboygan County 
Stewardship Fund 
application 
 
________________________ 
 
 
Officers 
Rolf Johnson – President 
Eric Fowle – Vice President 
Cathy Pabich – Secretary 
Karl Klessig – Treasurer 
 
Board Members 
Carl Giessel 
Jon Gumtow 
Susan Kennedy 
DuWayne Klessig 
Mary Koczan 
Katie Krouse 
Sara Schuetze 
Christina Studebaker 
Tom Ward 
 
 
 



Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
12075 Corporate Parkway Suite 200, Mequon WI  53092-2649 

 

   

 
 

April 29, 2021 

Attention:  Mr. John Schott, President  
Elkhart Lake Improvement Association 
P.O. Box 725 
Elkhart Lake, WI 53020 
 

Dear Mr. Schott, 

Stantec Consulting Services, Inc (Stantec) is pleased to provide this letter in support of Elkhart Lake 
Improvement Association’s (ELIA) Sheboygan County Stewardship Grant application to expand their lake 
planning efforts within the Elkhart Lake basin.  Stantec provides lake planning and ecological restoration 
services for a variety of private and public sector clients and understands the importance of comprehensive 
planning to implement water quality improvement projects.   

Stantec is currently supporting ELIA’s surface water sampling efforts under a Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (WDNR) Surface Water Grant, which will help identify potential surface water inputs and 
their relationship to water quality and aquatic invasive species (AIS) in the lake.  This data will help support 
the watershed planning effort proposed under this grant application. Stantec’s team of professional 
ecological specialists and engineers will continue to assist ELIA with planning, education and outreach, and 
water quality monitoring efforts in support of this project.   

Stantec strongly supports ELIA’s efforts to improve the ecological health of Elkhart Lake. 

Thank you for considering this project. 
 
Regards, 
 
Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
 

Sarah Majerus PWS 
Environmental Scientist 
Phone: 920-627-3183  
Sarah.Majerus@stantec.com 

 
 

 

 



Surface Water Data Viewer Map

DISCLAIMER: The information shown on these maps has been obtained from various 
sources, and are of varying age, reliability and resolution. These maps are not intended to be 
used for navigation, nor are these maps an authoritative source of information about legal land 
ownership or public access. No warranty, expressed or implied, is made regarding accuracy, 
applicability for a particular use, completeness, or legality of the information depicted on this 
map. For more information, see the DNR Legal Notices web page: http://dnr.wi.gov/legal/31,680

1.0

1:NAD_1983_HARN_Wisconsin_TM

Miles1.00.50

Notes

Legend

0

WHD-Plus Catchments

Municipality

State Boundaries

County Boundaries

Major Roads

Interstate Highway

State Highway

US Highway

County and Local Roads

County HWY

Local Road

Railroads

Tribal Lands

Rivers and Streams

Intermittent Streams

Lakes and Open water



!_
!i

5

10

20
40

30

50

60

70

80 90
10

0
110

115

119

10

70

50

60
80

40

30

90

11 5

S L
AK

E 
ST

LAKESIDE PARK RD

E SHORELAND RD

CO
UN

TY
 RO

AD
 P

FRENCH RD

IMI GS  R D

S E
AS

T S
T

SH
OR

E L
A N

D 
RD

S TURTL E BAY RD

ELKHART LAKE DR

SHARPES DR

LAKESHORE DR

AU
TU

MN
 D

R

SHADY LN

G RASSY LN

S W
ES

T S
T

O STHOFF AVE

SUGAR BUSH LN

ELM ST

FROMM LN

CO
UN

TY
 R

OA
D 

A 
J

PO
ET

S C
OV

E

POINT ELKHA RT DR

V I CTORIAN V ILLAGE DR

SHEBOYGAN BAY DR

S L
AK

E 
ST

GRASSY LN

S LAKE ST

I0 650325 'Elkhart Lake

Sheboygan
County

Boat
Landing

These maps are intended for general use only & should not be
construed as correct.
The contours were digitized by the Sheboygan County Planning &
Conservation Department from Lake Survey Maps done between
1964 & 1972 by the Wisconsin Conservation Department & the
Wisconsin Department of  Natural Resources. WI DNR scanned &
geo-referenced the original hand drawn maps.

The
Osthoff
Resort

Siebkens
ResortVictorian

Village
Resort

Firemans
Park



Lake
Terrace Dr

W Rhine St

Gottfried St

Mo
rain

e Ct

Crestwood Ct

Spring St

Lake View Cir

Paulina Pl

ElmSt

Pon
d Ln

E Maple St

Lot
us Tr

Ab
ler Ln

N O
tis 

St

OmerSt

PineSt

Scott
St

GarfieldAve

Hig
hla

nd 
Dr

SugarBush Ln

Young
St

E Barrett St
E Benson St

Shady
Ln

Bay Rd

Woodcrest Dr

Hidd en

Meado wDr

Sharpes Dr

PamelaLn
Sheboy gan

Bay Dr

S East
St

E Main
St

Duchess
Ct

Akin St

BirchTree Rd

Co
unt

y
Roa

d A
 J

Birc hwood

Heig hts
Rd

SummitWoods Ln

Burks
hire
Ln

Aero Dr

S W
est

 St

Kettleview Ct

Ind
ust

ria
l

Dr

Arb
or D

r

Slade St

SohnDr

HickoryTree Ln

S S
wif

t S
t

NTurtleBay Rd

Wa lnutSt

Vict o rian

Village Dr

WK
arpathy

Ln

Cla
rk S

t

Marsh
View Dr

C rys
tal

Isl eL
n

SummitRd

Lakeshore Dr

Hilltop Rd

Victor yLn

Deer
Run Ln

Star Rd

Par
kvi

ew

Cir

Hickory Ln

Wo
ods

i de
Ln

Fishermans Ln

St A ndrews Ct

Westwind Rd

E Rhine St

Lando
St

Ke ttl

e

Rid ge C
ir

Zep
hyr

Rd

Point

Elkhart Dr

MapleDr

Imigs Rd

Wehmey er S
t

Sch
wa

ller
Dr

O tto Way

Mullet Ln

Coun
ty Road

A West

Cre
stw

ood
 Dr

Mo
rai

ne
D r

Grass y Ln

Cedar
Ln

County RoadA North

Glac ial
Ct

Rocky Ln

Hickory
Tree Rd

Lit
tle

 Elk
har

t
Lak

e R
d

L a
ke

View
Dr

ElkhartLake Dr
French Rd

S Lincoln St
Karpathy Ln

S La
ke S

t

W Main St

Ridge Rd

Schneikert Ln

JenniferDr

Sho
rel

and
 Rd

County
Road C

Rock
y K

nol
l Pk

wy

N S
wif

t S
t

Coun ty

Road J

Golf

Course Rd

County Road C J

Ridge
Creek Rd

County Road JP

Ap
ple

 Ln

Sta
te 

Hig
hw

ay 
67

C edar
View Dr

Co
unt

y R
oad

 OJ

Hammann Rd

County Road FF

State
Highway 67

Brady Ln

Osthoff
Ave

GreenTree Rd

Weber Rd

Gerber Lake Rd

E Shoreland Rd

County Road J

N Lincoln St

County Road NR

Quit Qui
Oc Ln

Lit
tle

 Elk
har

t L
ake

 Rd

Cou
nty

Roa
d A

P

Hickory Ln

Rh
ine

 RdEsker
Ridge

Ra
cet

rac
k R

d

Cou
nty

Roa
dSR

CountyRoad J

Sna
ke 

Rd

County Road J
CampEvelyn Rd

Anokijig Ln
Plateau D r

RoyalAnd
AncientDr

LakesidePark Rd

C ountyRoa d S

County Road C
State Highway 67

Co
unt

y R
oad

 E
Co

unt
y R

oad
 E

LimeKiln Rd

County Road A North

County
Road CJ

County Road P

County Road P

Badger Rd

Garton Rd

Highv
iew

 Rd

County Road FF

Keystone Rd

County Road A North

Sheboygan
Marsh

Elkhart
Lake

Crystal
Lake

Little Elkhart Lake

Gerber
Lake

Sheboygan
Marsh South
Ditch

Front
Cover

Back
Cover

Public Access Points
!y County Maintained Boat Landings
!y Non-County Maintained
!| Canoe Launch

Marsh Tower

State Park Trails
Ice Age Trail

Elkhart
Lake

Glenbeulah

Kettle Moraine
State Forest

Broughton
Sheboygan

Marsh

La Budde Creek State
Wildlife Area

Camp Anokijig

Quit Qui Oc
Golf Course

4 Miles
of

Fitness
Road

America

¬«1

¬«6

¬«3

¬«9

¬«10

¬«5

¬«7

¬«2

¬«8

¬«4

E l k h a r t
L a k e

C r y s t a l
L a k e

L i t t l e
E l k h a r t

L a k e

Sir Lanserlot
Golf Course

Elkhart Lake Area
Recreation Map

Map prepared by the Sheboygan County
Planning & Conservation Department

Sheboygan
County,
Wisconsin

Elkahart Lake's naturally beautiful
environment cultivates healthy living.
Its crystal clear spring-fed, 293 acre lake
is a watersport-lovers paradise. Swimming,
paddling and fishing are popular leisure
activities. Close proximity to the Kettle
Moraine State Forest and its glacially
formed hills and valleys make it a popular
destination for hikers, bikers, cross country

G e r b e r
L a k e

Mu l l e t R i v e r

L a
B u

d d
e

C r
e e

k

L a
B u d d e C r e e k

S h e b o y g a n R i v e r

For more information visit us at:
elkhartlake.com

or
elkhartlakewi.gov

Gerber Lake
Fish &

Wildlife
Area

Trails around Elkhart Lake
2 mi Out & Back - Village Route
2 mi Out & Back - Lake Route
2.6 mi Out & Back - Ice Age Trail
3 mi Out & Back
3.5 mi Ice Age Trail Loop
4 mi Loop
5 mi Loop
10 km Triathalon Out & Back
June Vollrath East Loop - 0.77 mi
June Vollrath NW Loop - 0.61 mi
Quit Qui Oc Snowshoeing Trail

Please be aware that you will be sharing on road section of trails
with motor vehicle traffic. The user assumes all risks encountered &
is advised to use good judgement & obey traffic laws on all roads.

¬«5

skiers and snowshoers.

RE
CR

EAT
ION

  KE
Y

Sheboygan County Marsh Park,
Disc Golf & Foot Golf Courses

Village Square Park and
Playground

Fireman's Park and Beach
Quit Qui Oc Golf Course and
Snow Shoeing Trails

June Vollrath Park and
Fitness Trail
Lion's Park and Playground

Watersports Rental Locations

Historic Race Circuit
Start/Finish Line

4 Miles of Fitness at
Road America

Run/Walk Loops with
Start/Finish at Village Walkway
(see distance key below)

¬«1

¬«2

¬«3

¬«4

¬«5

¬«6

¬«7

¬«8

¬«9

¬«10



Elkhart Lake Watershed Planning   
Elkhart Lake Improvement Association      
 

 

 Page 1 of 1 

 

Photo 1. Aerial view of northeast shoreline of Elkhart Lake.  This portion of the 
watershed is located within the Village of Elkhart Lake and is composed of residential 
and commercial land uses.   

 

Photo 2. Aerial view the west half of Elkhart Lake.  This portion of the watershed is 
located within the Town of Rhine and is composed of residential and agricultural 
land use. 

 





Sheboygan County 

Planning & Conservation Department 
Administration Building  508 New York Avenue  Sheboygan, WI  53081-4126 
P:  (920) 459-3060  P:  (920) 459-1370  F:  (920) 459-1371  
E:  plancon@sheboygancounty.com              Director 
                         Aaron C. Brault 

Memo 
TO:  Planning, Resources, Agriculture & Extension Committee Members 

FROM: Tyler Betry  

DATE:   July 13, 2021 

RE:     2021 Stewardship Staff Recommendation: Sheboygan County Humane Society – Public Dog Park Project 

The Sheboygan County Humane Society (HSSC) has submitted a project development application requesting 

$45,000 to assist in creating a 3.5-acre dog park that is open to the public and open 24/7.  The site of the 

proposed dog park is located on the north side of the City of Sheboygan on a 6.2-acre parcel on N 21st Street.  This 

parcel was donated to the Humane Society in order to build a new 20,000 sq. ft. facility along with the 3.5-acre 

dog park.  HSSC is asking for funds to help cover a portion of the costs for fencing, pathways, and lighting for the 

dog park. 

The park will include a retention pond that will be utilized for the dogs to swim in and a trail system.  There will be 

ample space for people and their animals to exercise through walking, running, and playing.  This gives dogs, 

adults and children an opportunity to connect and large spaces for their animals to run off leash and free. 

Based on the application, which was scored last with an average staff score of 22/58, staff proposes that the PRAE 

Committee recommend funding in the partial amount of $19,907 contingent upon obtaining the required 50% 

or more match. Although, this project scored last out of the other applicants, staff believe it’s still a worthwhile 

project and meets the goals outlined within the Stewardship Grant Program.  The recommended funding amount 

computes to just over 6% of the total estimated project cost to build the park.  Listed below are the pros and cons 

of the project that staff developed.    

Pros  

• Transforms an underutilized area to 

something with a higher and better use. 

• Asking for much less than 50% of total 

project cost. 

• There seems to be a need for a dog park 

on the north side of Sheboygan 

• Property was donated 

 

 

 

Cons 

• Scored poor in the environmental 

portion of the ranking/rating sheet  

• Ask not detailed 

 

 






























































































	7-13 agenda
	PRAE Committee Minutes - June 8, 2021 (2)
	ComboPRAEOptimized
	HHSC
	ELIA
	Mosel
	ROOTS


	Development Project Items list by individual item or break down by use areas include donated materials andor timeRow1: Administration (ELIA)
	Indicate Contract C Force Account F or Donated DRow1: D
	Quantity and unit of measureRow1: In Kind
	Component CostRow1: 
	Estimated total item costRow1: $500
	Development Project Items list by individual item or break down by use areas include donated materials andor timeRow2: Storm Sewer Mapping (Consultant)
	Indicate Contract C Force Account F or Donated DRow2: C
	Quantity and unit of measureRow2: Cash
	Component CostRow2: 
	Estimated total item costRow2: $10,000
	Development Project Items list by individual item or break down by use areas include donated materials andor timeRow3: Data Collection (ELIA, WDNR Surface Water Grant)
	Indicate Contract C Force Account F or Donated DRow3: D
	Quantity and unit of measureRow3: In Kind
	Component CostRow3: 
	Estimated total item costRow3: $1,500
	Development Project Items list by individual item or break down by use areas include donated materials andor timeRow4: STEPL Model (Consultant, Funded by ELIA Lake Improvement Fund)
	Indicate Contract C Force Account F or Donated DRow4: D
	Quantity and unit of measureRow4: Cash
	Component CostRow4: 
	Estimated total item costRow4: $10,000
	Development Project Items list by individual item or break down by use areas include donated materials andor timeRow5: GIS Web Map (Consultant, Funded by ELIA Lake Improvement Fund)
	Indicate Contract C Force Account F or Donated DRow5: D
	Quantity and unit of measureRow5: Cash
	Component CostRow5: 
	Estimated total item costRow5: $4,000
	Development Project Items list by individual item or break down by use areas include donated materials andor timeRow6: Watershed Management Plan (Consultant, Funded by ELIA Lake Improvement Fund)
	Indicate Contract C Force Account F or Donated DRow6: D
	Quantity and unit of measureRow6: Cash
	Component CostRow6: 
	Estimated total item costRow6: $8,000
	Development Project Items list by individual item or break down by use areas include donated materials andor timeRow7: Watershed Management Plan & Stakeholder Meeting (ELIA Volunteers)
	Indicate Contract C Force Account F or Donated DRow7: D
	Quantity and unit of measureRow7: In Kind
	Component CostRow7: 
	Estimated total item costRow7: $2,000
	Development Project Items list by individual item or break down by use areas include donated materials andor timeRow8: 
	Indicate Contract C Force Account F or Donated DRow8: 
	Quantity and unit of measureRow8: 
	Component CostRow8: 
	Estimated total item costRow8: 
	Development Project Items list by individual item or break down by use areas include donated materials andor timeRow9: 
	Indicate Contract C Force Account F or Donated DRow9: 
	Quantity and unit of measureRow9: 
	Component CostRow9: 
	Estimated total item costRow9: 
	Development Project Items list by individual item or break down by use areas include donated materials andor timeRow10: 
	Indicate Contract C Force Account F or Donated DRow10: 
	Quantity and unit of measureRow10: 
	Component CostRow10: 
	Estimated total item costRow10: 
	Development Project Items list by individual item or break down by use areas include donated materials andor timeRow11: 
	Indicate Contract C Force Account F or Donated DRow11: 
	Quantity and unit of measureRow11: 
	Component CostRow11: 
	Estimated total item costRow11: 
	Development Project Items list by individual item or break down by use areas include donated materials andor timeRow12: 
	Indicate Contract C Force Account F or Donated DRow12: 
	Quantity and unit of measureRow12: 
	Component CostRow12: 
	Estimated total item costRow12: 
	Development Project Items list by individual item or break down by use areas include donated materials andor timeRow13: 
	Indicate Contract C Force Account F or Donated DRow13: 
	Quantity and unit of measureRow13: 
	Component CostRow13: 
	Estimated total item costRow13: 
	Development Project Items list by individual item or break down by use areas include donated materials andor timeRow14: 
	Indicate Contract C Force Account F or Donated DRow14: 
	Quantity and unit of measureRow14: 
	Component CostRow14: 
	Estimated total item costRow14: 
	Development Project Items list by individual item or break down by use areas include donated materials andor timeRow15: 
	Indicate Contract C Force Account F or Donated DRow15: 
	Quantity and unit of measureRow15: 
	Component CostRow15: 
	Estimated total item costRow15: 
	Development Project Items list by individual item or break down by use areas include donated materials andor timeRow16: 
	Indicate Contract C Force Account F or Donated DRow16: 
	Quantity and unit of measureRow16: 
	Component CostRow16: 
	Estimated total item costRow16: 
	Development Project Items list by individual item or break down by use areas include donated materials andor timeRow17: 
	Indicate Contract C Force Account F or Donated DRow17: 
	Quantity and unit of measureRow17: 
	fill_84: 36,000
	fill_85: 10,000
	Municipalityorganization: Elkhart Lake Improvement Association (ELIA)
	501c3 nonprofit organization: On
	Town Village or City in Sheboygan County: Off
	Other governmental agency: Off
	Project has been identified in the Plan and its boundaries are entirely within the Plan: Off
	Project has partially been identified andor buffers a project identified in the Plan: Off
	Project fits the intent of one or more of the goals of the Plan: On
	This project is not identified in the Plan but is identified in the following local state or: Off
	federal plan: 
	Project development: On
	Real estate acquisition: Off
	Discretionary explain: Off
	undefined: 


